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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
BEFORE THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSIO}
OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGES

RESPONDENT 1-800 CONTACTS’ OPPOSITION TO COMPLAINT COUNSEL’S
MOTION TO COMPEL RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 8

I INTRODUCTION

Complaint Counsel’s motion to compel a further response to their Interrogatory No. 8
should be denied for three distinct reasons. First, the mot.ion is untimely. As Complaint Counsel
have acknowledged, Respondent declined on November 7, 2016, to further supplement its
response to Interrogatory No. 8. In Complaint Counsel’s words at the time, “[w]e have reached
impasse on Interrogatories 8, 9, and 12.” Declaration of Gregory P. Stone in Support of
Respondent’s Opposition To Complaint Counsel’s Motion To Compel Response To
Interrogatory No. 8 (“Stone Decl.”), Exhibit A. Complaint Counsel thus were required under the
Scheduling Order to file a motion to compel a further response to Interrogatory No. 8 no later
than December 7, 2016, which they failed to do.‘

Second, Complaint Counsel can as readily as Respondent identify the communications
Respondent had with Settling Parties in which Respondent identified particular advertisements as
infringing. Complaint Counsel have access to an electronic database containing communications

from Respondent to a Settling Party that attach advertisements, and the necessary searches can
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be performed just as readily by Complaint Counsel as by Respondent. As a consequence,
Respondent’s reliance on Rule 3.35(c) was appropriate. See Order on Complaint Counsel’s
Motion to Compel Responses to Interrogatories and to Reschedule Deposition, /n the Matter of
North Texas Specialty Physicians, Docket No. 9312, 2004 WL 318270 at *2 (Jan. 22, 2004)
(rejecting challenge to Respondent’é reliance on Rule 3.35(c) where “Complaint Counsel’s
interrogatories ask Respondent to identify specific documents from the documents that
Respondent has already produced to Complaint Counsel that Respondent contends support
certain contentions” and “Respondent has demonstrated that the burden of deriving or
ascertaining the answers from the documents produced is substantially the same for Complaint
Counsel as it is for Respondent.”).

Third, Interrogatory No. 8 also seeks a description of the thought procesé by which
counsel for 1-800 Contacts determined that there was a factual basis to believe that the
advertisements in question were infringing. That thought process is quite clearly protected from
discovery by the work product privilege and, to the extent the process was communicated to
Respondent’s officers or employees by its inside or outside counsel, by the attorney-client
privilege. These issues were most recently addressed in the deposition of one of Respondent’s
outside counsel, Bryan Pratt, who testified to the information that was available to him to review
in order to make a determination of whether an advertisement was or appeared to be infringing,
and who asserted privilege over the thought process that he went through in making that
determination. Complaint Counsel’s effort to pierce or avoid these well-settled privileges should

be rejected.
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IL ARGUMENT

A, Complaint Counsel’s Motion To Compel Is Untimely And Should Be Denied
On That Ground

Complaint Counsel filed their motion to compel on December 22, 2016, fifty-two (52)
days after Respondent 1-800 Contacts served the response to Interrogatory No. 8 that is the
subject of the motion. The motion is therefore untimely under paragraph 10 of the Scheduling
Order. Moreover, even if the thirty-day deadline for motions to compel begins to run on the date
on which the parties’ meet-and-confer efforts reached an impasse, see Order on Respondent’s
| Motion to Compel Documents Requested from Connecticut Life Insurance Company, In the
Matter of OSF Healthcare System, Docket No. 9349, 2012 WL 588757 at *1 (Feb. 13, 2012),
Complaint Counsel’s motion to compel is still untimely.

Complaint Counsel’s Statement Regarding Meet and Confer acknowledges that the final
meet and confer regarding Respondent’s Response to Interrogatory No. 8 took place on
November 7, 2016, and that no further discussions regarding 1-800 Contacts’ response to
Interrogatory No. 8 occurred gffer that date. See Statement By Daniel J. Matheson Regarding
Meet and Confer, attached to Complaint Counsel’s Motion to Compei Response to Interrogatory
No. 8. That same day, Mr. Matheson sent an email to Respondent’s counsel that accurately
stated “[w]e have reached impasse on Interrogatories 8, 9 and 12.” Stone Decl., ex. A, Thus,
Complaint Counsel were required to file their motion to compel by no later than December 8,

2016, The motion, filed on December 22, should be denied as untime]y.l

! Complaint Counsel appear to believe, because Respondent agreed in the November 7, 2016
call to amend its responses to two other interrogatories, that their 30-day clock was reset as to al/
of Respondent’s interrogatory responses, even those where the parties had clearly “reached [an]
impasse.” Stone Decl., ex. A. There is no logical basis or precedential support for such an
(footnote continued)
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B. Respondent’s Invocation Of Rule 3.35(c) In Responding To Interrogatory
No. 8 Was And Is Clearly Appropriate Given The Subject Matter Of That

Interrogatory

Complaint Counsel state that “[t]he principal question presented” by their motion to
compel is whether 1-800 Contacts properly relied on Rule 3.35(c) in responding to Interrogatory
No. 8. Motion to Compel at 1. Even if Complaint Counsel’s motion to compel was timely filed,
it should nevertheless be denied, because Respondent’s invocation of Rule 3.35(c) was
appropriate given the nature of Interrogatory No. 8 and the status of discovery in this matter.

Complaint Counsel’s Interrogatory No. 8 contained three subparts. The interrogatory
sought: (1) the identity of the advertisements that 1-800 Contacts had identified to any of the
Settling Parties as infringing 1-800 Contacts’ trademark rights; (2) a description of the “process”
used by 1-800 Contacts to determine that the advertisements infringed 1-800 Contacts’
trademark rights; and (3) a description of the factual basis for 1-800 Contacts’ conclusion that
the infringements had occurred. Declaration of Kathleen M. Clair, ex. 1, Interrogatory No. 8.

Respondent invoked Rule 3.35(c) in response to subpart (1) of the interrogatory, which
sought the identity of “the allegedly infringing advertisements that Respondent previously
specifically identified in communications with rivals — rather than . . . all allegedly infringing
advertisements.” Complaint Counsel’s Motion to Compel at 1 (emphasis in original). In its
response, 1-800 Contacts did not merely tell Complaint Counsel to review the entire set of
produced documents, as Complaint Counsel suggest. Instead, Respondent pointed Complaint
Counsel to the particular advertisements attached to letters or emails between 1-800 Contacts and

one or more of the Settling Parties (e.g., cease-and-desist letters sent by 1-800 Contacts), as well

interpretation, which would delay, rather than encourage, prompt judicial review of discovery
disputes.
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as the advertisements attached to pleadings filed by 1-800 Contacts in litigation against a Settling
Party. Complaint Counsel can identify those documents just as easily as counsel for 1-800
Contacts could do so.

As a result of the CIDs, subpoenas duces tecum, and document requests that Complaint
Counsel have served on the Settling .Parties and 1-800 Contacts over the past eighteen months,
Complaint Counsel have possessed all of those letters, emails, pleadings and attachments for a
considerable period of time.” Complaint Counsel can readily search for such letters, emails and
pleadings in their electronic database of produced documents in the very same way that counsel
for 1-800 Contacts would — by using the names of the Settling Parties, the names of 1-800
Contacts’ lawyers, and other. relevant terms as search tools. Complaint Counsel did not claim
otherwise in their motion, nor could they. It was thus appropriate for 1-800 Contacts to rely on
Rule 3.35(c). See North Texas Specialty Physicians, 2004 WL 318270 at *2 (rejecting challenge
to Respondent’s reliance on Rule 3.35(c) where “Respondent has demonstrated that the burden
of deriving or ascertaining the answers from the documents produced is substantially the same
for Complaint Counsel as it is for Respondent™).

C. The Thought Processes Of 1-800 Contacts Counsel Regarding The

Potentially Infringing Nature Of Various Advertisements Are Privileged
And Not A Proper Subject Of Discovery

The second subpart of Interrogatory No. 8 asked 1-800 Contacts to describe the process
by which it determined that the advertisements attached to 1-800 Contacts cease-and-desist

letters and complaints infringed 1-800 Contacts’ trademarks. Clair Decl., ex. 1 at 2. The third

? Respondent produced many of these materials during the underlying Investigation (nearly all of
the complaints and other pleadings are publicly available from the courts’ electronic filing
systems), and Respondent completed production of all such communications months ago in
response to Complaint Counsel’s initial requests for production. (Complaint Counsel has not
raised any issues with the completeness of Respondent’s production of these materials.)
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subpart of Interrogatory Nd. 8 sought the “factual basis for those determinations.” Id. 1-800
Contacts responded that, to the extent information responsive to these subparts of Interrogatory
No. 8 were not privileged, the information was contained in correspondence or emails between
1-800 Contacts and the Settling Parties, pleadings filed by 1-800 Contacts in litigation with the
Settling Parties, and the transcripts of Investigational Hearings of 1-800 Contacts’ employees.
See Clair Decl., ex. 6 at 23-24. 1-800 Contacts specifically asserted privilege over the process
and thought processes used by it and its attorneys to make these determinations. See id.

There can be no dispute that the thought processes of counsel are privileged and not
subject to discovery. For example, “[t]he doctrine of work-product immunity shelters the mental
processes of the attorney, providing a privileged area within which he can analyze and prepare
his client's case. . .. Protecting attorneys’ work product promotes the adversary system by
enabling attorneys to prepare cases without fear that their work product will be used against their
clients.” LabMD, Inc. v. Tiversa Holding Corp., No. CIV.A. 15-92, 2015 WL 1213043, at *4
(W.D. Pa. Mar. 17, 2015) (internal citations and quotation marks omitted). See also Richard v.
Caliber Home Loans, Inc., No. 2:15-CV-2647, 2016 WL 6573847, at *3 (S.D. Ohio Nov. 4,
2016) (the work product doctrine protects “the attorney’s mental impressions, including thought
processes, opinions, conclusions, and legal theories.”); In the Matter of Olin Corp., Docket No.
9196, 1985 WL 668861, at *2 (Nov. 26, 1985) (explaining that the work product doctrine “has
an ‘inner core’ that protects the mental impressions, conclusions, opinions, or legal theories of

counsel”). Material that reflects “an attorney’s mental impressions, conclusions, opinions, or

3 See, e.g., Investigation Hearing Transcript of Bryce F. Craven at 126:16-23; 128:13-23; 134:7 —
135:3 (Sep. 3, 2015) (explaining the process used by 1-800 Contacts’ employees to identify
sponsored advertisements that appeared in response to an Internet search for 1-800 Contacts’
trademarks in order to send to the “legal team™), attached as Stone Decl., ex. B.
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legal theories, is referred to as ‘opinion work product,’” which “enjoys a nearly absolute
immunity and can be discovered only in very rare and extraordinary circumstances.” Cox v.
Administrator U.S. Steel & Carnegie, 17 F.3d 1386, 1422 (11th Cir. 1994).

As one of 1-800 Contacts’ outside counsel testified recently, he and/or other counsel for
1-800 Contacts would consider variéus advertisements by third parties that appeared in response
to Internet searches for 1-800 Contacts’ trademarks. See, e.g., Dep. Tr. Bryan G. Pratt, at 19:19
—21:24, 27:12 — 30:8, attached as Stone Decl., ex. C; CX1185, attached as Stone Decl., ex. D.
Counsel would then exercise his or her legal judgment to make a determination as to whether
that third party was infringing on Respondent’s trademark or other rights and, if so, what
particular advertisements to identify to that third party as evidencing the infringement. See id.
The thought process by which counsel came to those legal judgments is protected by the work
product privilege and, to the extent that process was communicated to Respondent, the attorney-
client pfivi]ege. Complaint Counsel do not explain why counsel’s thought process in coming to
a determination about whether a particular claim should be asserted is not privileged; they simply
say that “a high-level description need not reveal privileged information.” Motion to Compel at
8. But to the extent a high level description that is not privileged can be provided, it has been

provided. See Stone Decl., exs. C and D.

_4 1-800 Contacts filed a complaint in federal court that set forth factual bases

% As asserted in 1-800 Contacts’ Answer to the Complaint, one of the agreements at issue is a
“sourcing and fulfillment agreement,” not a settlement agreement of litigation. Respondent 1-
(footnote continued)
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for the claims asserted. Stone Decl,, exs. E —R.

| Id,exs.S
— CC. While the thought process of 1-800 Contacts’ counsel in determining which facts
supported the asserted claims is certainly privileged, it is clear that it was objectively reasonable
to assert that the advertisements in qﬁestion supported such claims.’

Although a detailed discussion of the relevant case law is unnecessary here, there are
numerous cases where motions to dismiss or motions for summary judgment have been denied in
cases challenging the use of competitors’ trademarks in paid search advertising on grounds that
would be equally applicable to the cases filed by 1-800 Contacts. Indeed, 1-800 Contacts
provided a separate interfogatory response (which Complaint Counsel has chosen not to mention
or challenge in their motion) that presents this information in more detail. Interrogatory No. 13
asked 1-800 Contacts to state the factual basis for its assertion in its answer that the lawsuits that
resulted in the challenged settlement agreement constituted “bona fide trademark litigation.” In
its response, 1-800 Contacts explained that (1) “the use of a trademark as a Search Engine
Kéyword that triggers the display of a competitor’s advertisement is a use in commerce under the
Lanham Act,” see, e.g., Network Automation, Inc. v. Advanced Sys. Concepts, Inc., 638 F.3d

1137, 1144 (9th Cir. 2011); Rescuecom Corp. v. Google Inc., 562 F.3d 123, 128-41 (2d Cir.

800 Contacts, Inc.’s Answer and Defenses to Administrative Complaint, at 1 (filed Aug. 29,
2016).

> In the litigation filed by 1-800 Contacts against Memorial Eye and Lens.com, the coutts
rejected arguments that the cases were not bona fide trademark litigations. See 1-800 Contacts,
Inc. v. Lens.com, Inc., 722 F.3d 1229, 1256 (10th Cir. 2013); Order, Lens.com, Inc. v. 1-800
Contacts, Inc., No. 2:12CV00352 DS, (D. Utah Mar. 3, 2014), ECF No. 91; 1-800 Contacts, Inc.
v. Lens.com, No. 2:07-CV-591 CW, 2012 WL 113812, at *3 (D, Utah Jan. 13, 2012); and /-
800Contacts, Inc. v. Memorial Eye, P.A., No. 2:08-CV-983 TS, 2010 WL 988524, *[ (D. Utah,
Mar. 15, 2010).
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2009), (2) the analysis under the Lanham Act depends on a highly fact-specific inquiry that
involves balancing a number of different factors (which differ by jurisdiction), and (3)
“numerous courts have recognized the bona fides of trademark infringement and trademark
dilution claims in analogous circumstances to those asserted by 1-800 Contacts.” Clair Decl., ex.

2, at23-27 (1-800 Contacts’ Response to Interrogatory No. 13).

For the reasons set forth above, Complaint Counsel’s motion to compel a further response

to Interrogatory No. 8 should be denied.

DATED: January 3, 2017 Respectfully submitted,

/s/ Gregory M. Sergi

Gregory P. Stone (gregory.stone@mto.com)
Steven M., Perry (steven.perry(@mto.com)
Garth T. Vincent (garth.vincent@mto.com)
Stuart N. Senator (stuart.senator@mto.com)
Gregory M. Sergi (gregory.sergi@mto.com)
Justin P. Raphael (justin.raphael@mto.com)

MUNGER, TOLLES & OLSON LLP
355 South Grand Avenue, 35th Floor
Los Angeles, California 90071-1560
Telephone: (213) 683-9100
Facsimile: (213) 687-3702

Counsel for Respondent [-800 Contacts, Inc.
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
BEFORE THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION
OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGES

In th
i the Matier of Docket No. 9372

1-800 Contacts, Inc.,
a corporation

DECLARATION OF GREGORY P. STONE IN SUPPORT OF RESPONDENT’S
OPPOSITION TO COMPLAINT COUNSEL’S MOTION TO COMPEL
RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 8

I, Gregory P. Stone, declare as follows:

1. I am a member of the law firm of Munger, Tolles & Olson LLP, counsel for
Respondent 1-800 Contacts, Inc. in this matter. [ am duly licensed to practice law before the
courts of the State of California and have appeared in this action pursuant to Rule 4.1 of the
Commission’s Rules of Practice.

2 I submit this declaration in support of Respondent’s Opposition to Complaint
Counsel’s Motion to Compel Response to Interrogatory No. 8. 1 have personal knowledge of the
facts stated in this declaration and, if called as a witness, could competently testify to them.

3. Attached hereto as Exhibit A is a true and correct copy of an email
communication sent to me by Daniel J. Matheson on November 7, 2016.

4. Attached hereto as Exhibit B is a true and correct copy of excerpts from the
Investigation Hearing of Bryce F. Craven taken on September 3, 2015.

5. Attached hereto as Exhibit C is a true and correct copy of excerpts from the

deposition of Bryan G. Pratt taken on December 15, 2016.
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6. Attached hereto as Exhibit D is a true and correct copy of CX1185, which
describes the “monitoring” activity of Messrs. Pratt and Miller and that was the subject of
testimony at Mr. Pratt’s deposition.

Z Attached hereto as Exhibits E-R are true and correct copies of complaints filed by
1-800 Contacts in federal courts against_: Complaint filed against
Arlington Contact Lens Service, Inc., d/b/a Discount Contact Lenses (Ex. E); Complaint filed
against Coastal Contacts, Inc. (Ex. F); Complaint filed against Contact Lens King, Inc. (Ex. G);
Complaint filed against Empire Vision Center, Inc., d/b/a Lens123 (Ex. H); Complaint filed
against Lenses for Less (Ex. I); Complaint filed against Lensfast, ..L...C. d/b/a ContactLens.com,
Lensfast.com, and E-Contacts.com (Ex. J); Complaint filed against Memorial Eye, PA d/b/a
Shipmycontacts.com, Ship-My-Contacts.com, and [WantContacts.com (Ex. K); Complaint filed
against Premier Holdings, Inc., d/b/a Filmart, Eugene Lefkowitz, Sholomo Lefkowitz, and Judith
Lefkowitz, d/b/a EZ Contacts USA (Ex. L); Complaint filed against Standard Optical Company
(Ex. M); Complaint filed against Tram Data, LLC, d/b/a ReplaceMyContacts.com (Ex. N);
Complaints filed against Vision Direct in 2002 and 2008 (Exs. O and P); Complaint filed against
Walgreen Co. (Ex. Q); and Complaint filed against Web Eye Care, Inc. (Ex. R).

8. Attached hereto as Exhibits S-CC are true and correct copies of cease-and-desist

eterssent by counse for 1-800 Contacts [
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[ declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States that the foregoing is
true and correct.

Executed on January 3, 2017 at Los Angeles, California.

/si Gregory P. Stone
Gregory P. Stone
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From: Matheson, Daniel <dmatheson@ftc.gov>

Sent: Monday, November 07, 2016 2:23 PM

To: Stone, Gregory; Beach, Julian

Cc: Blank, Barbara; Loughlin, Chuck; Slaiman, Charlotte; Green, Geoffrey; Chiarello, Gustav,
Gray, Joshua Barton; Clair, Kathleen; Taylor, Mark; Hopkin, Nathaniel; Brock, Thomas H.

Subject: RE: Amended Responses to First Set of Interrogatories

Greg and Julian,

Thank you for speaking with Katie and me this afternoon. As we discussed, Respondent will provide amended responses
to Interrogatories 1 and 7. We have reached impasse on Interrogatories 8, 9, and 12.

Regards,

Dan

From: Matheson, Daniel

Sent: Wednesday, November 02, 2016 1:07 PM

To: 'Stone, Gregory'

Cc: Blank, Barbara; Loughlin, Chuck; Slaiman, Charlotte; Green, Geoffrey; Chiarello, Gustav; Gray, Joshua Barton; Clair,
Kathleen; Taylor, Mark; Hopkin, Nathaniel; Brock, Thomas H.

Subject: RE: Amended Responses to First Set of Interrogatories

Greg,

Monday morning works for us. How about 9:00 Pacific, 12:00 Eastern? If that works we can use my dial-in: (877)336-
1831, passcode 3262075.

Our principal issues with your Interrogatory responses are the following:

e Interrogatory 1 — Your response does not identify each Settlement Agreement that produced a supposed
benefit. This is an important part of the Interrogatory. It is a straightforward request that 1-800 identify the
complete universe of Settlement Agreements. For example, | note that your response to Interrogatory 5
identifies correspondence with Johnson & Johnson and Ciba/Alcon that suggests the existence of a Settlement
Agreement with 1-800 Contacts.

e Interrogatory 7 — Your response states that you will produce documents sufficient to show. That is not
sufficient, as the Rule allows a reference to records only if the records are specifically identified.

e Interrogatory 8 — We do not agree that the factual basis for a contention made in a lawsuit is privileged, and we
do not agree that a request to describe the process requires the disclosure of privileged information. Also, your
reference to documents is not sufficient as the Rule allows a reference to records only if the records are
specifically identified.
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e Interrogatory 9 — Your response suggests that your response to Interrogatory to 8 provides “representative
examples of advertisements . . . that were likely to cause Consumer Confusion.” However, your response to 8
actually identifies zero advertisements.

e Interrogatory 12 — Your response provides more specificity than your initial response, which is very
helpful. However, your response still refers to your document production without specifying the records
pursuant to the Rule.

e Interrogatory 13 — Your response refers to documents without identifying the records.
Regards,

Dan

From: Stone, Gregory [mailto:Gregory.Stone@mto.com]

Sent: Tuesday, November 01, 2016 4:54 PM

To: Matheson, Daniel

Cc: Blank, Barbara; Loughlin, Chuck; Slaiman, Charlotte; Green, Geoffrey; Chiarello, Gustav; Gray, Joshua Barton; Clair,
Kathleen; Taylor, Mark; Hopkin, Nathaniel; Brock, Thomas H.

Subject: RE: Amended Responses to First Set of Interrogatories

It seems most efficient to first meet and confer. Could you send me a short email outlining
the issues you want to discuss? My schedule is a pretty booked up the rest of this week, but I
can make time Monday morning if that would work.

From: Matheson, Daniel [mailto:dmatheson@ftc.gov]

Sent: Tuesday, November 01, 2016 12:14 PM

To: Stone, Gregory

Cc: Blank, Barbara; Loughlin, Chuck; Slaiman, Charlotte; Green, Geoffrey; Chiarello, Gustav; Gray, Joshua Barton; Clair,
Kathleen; Taylor, Mark; Hopkin, Nathaniel; Brock, Thomas H.

Subject: RE: Amended Responses to First Set of Interrogatories

Greg,

The redactions appear appropriate, thank you. We have several substantive objections to your responses regarding
which we request a meet and confer. Would you prefer to present this version to your client for verification prior to
discussing our objections, or would it be more efficient to meet and confer to attempt to resolve our objections
first? Please let us know how you wish to proceed, we are generally available to meet and confer this week.

Regards,

Dan

From: Stone, Gregory [mailto:Gregory.Stone@mto.com]

Sent: Monday, October 31, 2016 4:47 PM

To: Matheson, Daniel

Cc: Blank, Barbara; Loughlin, Chuck; Slaiman, Charlotte; Green, Geoffrey; Chiarello, Gustav; Gray, Joshua Barton; Clair,
Kathleen; Taylor, Mark; Hopkin, Nathaniel; Brock, Thomas H.

Subject: Amended Responses to First Set of Interrogatories

Dan,
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I attach for your review a copy of the current version of our Amended Responses to Complaint
Counsel’s First Set of Interrogatories. The information in italics and brackets is intended to
be redacted or blacked out before the document is reviewed and verified by our client. Once
you confirm that our redactions are correct, we will provide this to our client for its review and
verification and then will serve a signed and verified copy on you.

Thank you,

Greg

Gregory P. Stone | Munger, Tolles & Olson LLP

355 South Grand Avenue | Los Angeles, CA 90071

Tel: 213.683.9255 | Fax: 213.683.5155 | Cell: 213.309.5999
gregory.stone@mto.com | www.mto.com
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Case 2:10-cv-00131-CW  Document 2

Mark A. Miller, 9563
mmiller@hollandhart.com
Bryan G. Pratt, 9924
bgpratt@hollandhart.com
Brett L. Foster, 6089
bfoster(@hollandhart.com
HOLLAND & HART LLp

60 East South Temple, Suite 2000
Salt Lake City, UT 84111-1031
Telephone: (801) 799-5800
Facsimile: (801) 799-5700
Attorneys for Plaintiff
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Filed 02/18/2010 Page 1 of 11

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF UTAH, CENTRAL DIVISION

1-800 CONTACTS, INC., a Delaware
corporation;

PlaintifT,
A%

ARLINGTON CONTACT LENS
SERVICE, INC., d/b/a DISCOUNT
CONTACT LENSES, an Ohio
corporation,

Defendant.

COMPLAINT

Case No. 2:10-cv-131

Judge Clark Waddoups

(JURY DEMAND)

Plaintiff 1-800 Contacts, Inc. (“1-800 Contacts” or “Plaintiff”), by and through counsel,

alleges and complains against Defendant Arlington Contact Lens Service, Inc., d/b/a Discount

Contact Lenses (“Defendant™) as follows:

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

1. This is an action for trademark infringement and unfair competition under §§ 32

and 43 of the Lanham Act (a.k.a. Trademark Act of 1946, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1051-1127, as amended),

and state law infringement and false advertising claims.

CONFIDENTIAL - FTC Docket No. 9372

4734363_1.DOC

1-800F_00080743
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Case 2:10-cv-00131-CW Document2  Filed 02/18/2010 Page 2 of 11

2 This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action under 28 U.S.C. § 1331
(federal question), 28 U.S.C. § 1338(a) (trademarks), and 15 U.S.C. § 1121 (trademarks). This
Court has supplemental jurisdiction over Plaintiff’s state law claims under 28 U.S.C. § 1367(a),
because those claims arise from the common nucleus of operative facts alleged in Plaintiff’s
federal claims,

3. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendant because, on information and
belief, Defendant has transacted business in Utah and has caused damage to Plaintiff in Utah.
Defendant has purposefully availed itself of the privilege of transacting business in this District
by, inter alia, advertising its contact lens products via the Internet in this District, offering an
interactive websites at www.discountcontactlenses.com and www.aclens.com accessible to
consumers throughout the country, including in this District, which permits the consumer to
create an account and order contact lenses to be shipped to the consumer in this District.
Defendant has used Plaintiff’s trademarks in connection with its Internet advertising, including
in this District, without the authorization or consent of Plaintiff,

4, Venue is proper in this district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391 because there is
personal jurisdiction over Defen-dam, and because a substantial part of Defendant’s acts and
omissions giving rise to Plaintiff’s claims occurred in this judicial district.

PARTIES

5, Plaintiff 1-800 Contacts, Inc. is a Delaware corporation having its principal place
of business at 66 East Wadsworth Park Drive, Draper, Utah 84020. Plaintiff is engaged in retail
sales of contact lenses, including marketing and selling contact lenses via the Internet.

6. Upon information and belief, Defendant is an Ohio corporation having a place of

business at 4265 Diplomacy Drive, Columbus, Ohio 43228. Upon information and belief,

4734363 _1.DOC

CONFIDENTIAL - FTC Docket No. 9372 1-800F_00080744
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Case 2:10-cv-00131-CW  Document2  Filed 02/18/2010 Page 3 of 11

Defendant is also engaged in retail sales of contact lenses, including marketing and selling
contact lenses via the Internet in direct competition with Plaintiff,

7. Upon information and belief, Defendant owns and operates the website
www.lensesforless.com, and possibly others, relating to its business of offering and selling
contact lenses and vision-related products.

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

8. For over a decade, Plaintiff has been, and continues to be, engaged in the business
of advertising, offering for sale, selling and distributing contact lenses and eye care products via
telephone, fax, Internet, and mail orders (the “Goods and Services”). 1-800 Contacts is the
market leader, having filled over ten million orders for millions customers. Plaintiff’s contact
lens and eye care products can be ordered via the Internet at Plaintiff’s website:
www. 1800contacts.com.

9. Plaintiff owns common law and federally registered trademark rights in the marks
1-800 CONTACTS, 1800 CONTACTS (U.S. Registration No. 2,731,114) and 1800CONTACTS
(U.S. Registration No, 2,675,866) (the “1-800 Contacts marks™).

10. Since at least as early as 1995, Plaintiff has advertised and offered its Goods and
Services using one or more of the 1-800 Contacts marks in interstate commerce throughout the
United States. The 1-800 Contacts marks have been used extensively in advertising and
promotional media, including the Internet, radio, television, trade shows, various printed media,
and direct mail.

1. Plaintiff has expended hundreds of millions of dollars advertising and marketing
its Goods and Services using the 1-800 Contacts marks over many years. As a result, the 1-800

Contacts marks and Goods and Services have achieved significant commercial success and

4734363_1.DOC

CONFIDENTIAL — FTC Docket No. 9372 1-800F_00080745
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Case 2:10-cv-00131-CW Document2  Filed 02/18/2010 Page 4 of 11

widespread consumer fame and recognition. In addition, the consuming public has come to
regard the 1-800 Contacts marks as symbols of Plaintiff, of Plaintiff’s quality Goods and
Services, and of Plaintiff’s goodwill as the leader in the retail contact lens industry.

12. Like Plaintiff, Defendant advertises and offers contact lenses over the Internet
through its www.discountcontactlenses.com and www.aclens.com websites in direct competition
with Plaintiff. Defendant does so via keyword advertising campaigns through various search
engines such as, for example, Google, Yahoo, and Bing.

13.  Oninformation and belief, Defendant is aware of the strong consumer recognition
enjoyed by the 1-800 Contacts marks and the significant goodwill Plaintiff has created in those
marks.

14, In order to trade off of Plaintiff’s goodwill and capitalize on the fame and
recognition of the 1-800 Contacts marks, Defendant has purchased, continues to purchase, and
has caused to be purchased, the 1-800 Contacts marks and/or confusingly similar variations or
misspellings thereof as keywords that trigger the display of sponsored advertisements for
Defendant’s competitive goods and services.

15 On information and belief, the keyword advertising programs offered by the
various search engines give control to the user, such as Defendant, to (a) select the keywords it
wishes to purchase to trigger its sponsored advertisements, and (b) implement “negative
keywords” that will ensure such advertisements are not triggered in response to a search for such
negative keywords.

16. On information and belief, Defendant is aware of the control it has over the
keyword advertising programs offered by the various search engines with respect to Defendant’s

advertisements. In particular, Defendant is aware that it can easily implement the 1-800 Contacts

4
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marks and confusingly similar variations or misspellings thereof as “negative keywords”™ in its
Internet advertising campaigns to ensure that Defendant’s directly competitive advertisements
are not displayed in response to a consumer searching for Plaintiff and/or Plaintiff’s Goods and
Services.

17. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Defendant has not sufficiently implemented the 1-
800 Contacts marks (and confusingly similar variations or misspellings thereof) as negative
keywords, but has instead voluntarily and consciously participated in causing its competitive
advertisements to be displayed in response to consumers searching for the 1-800 Contacts marks
and Plaintiff’s Goods and Services. |

18. Defendant’s unauthorized use of ﬂle 1-800 Contacts marks as keywords in its
Internet advertising campaigns and Defendant’s participation in causing its sponsored
advertisements to be displayed in response to searches for Plaintiff and Plaintiff’s Goods and
Services has caused, and will continue to cause, confusion and mistake, including initial interest
confusion, as to the source or origin of Defendant’s goods and services and is likely to falsely
suggest a sponsorship, connection, license, endorsement or association by Plaintiff with
Defendant’s goods and services, thereby injuring Plaintiff and the consuming public.

19.  Defendant’s actions also unjustly enrich Defendant by wrongtully directing
consumers searching for Plaintiff and Plaintiff’s Goods and Services on the Internet to
Defendant’s competitive website where such consumers purchase contact lenses from Defendant
rather than Plaintiff,

20.  Despite Plaintiff repeatedly providing Defendant with notice of its infringing

activities, Defendant’s actions of infringement have not ceased.
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CAUSES OF ACTION

COUNT I
(TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT UNDER SECTION 43(a) OF THE LANHAM ACT — 35 U.S.C. § 1125)
21.  Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference all of the foregoing paragraphs.
22.  Defendant’s acts as alleged herein with respect to its infringement of Plaintiff’s

marks are likely to cause public confusion, mistake, or deception as to the affiliation, connection,
or association of Plaintiff with Defendant. Defendant’s acts are also likely to cause public
confusion, mistake, or deception as to the origin, sponsorship, or approval of Defendant’s goods
and services by Plaintiff. Accordingly, Defendant’s acts constitute trademark infringement in
violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a).

23.  To the extent Defendant utilizes affiliates to conduct keyword advertising on its
behalf, Defendant is secondarily liable for the infringing acts of its affiliates that likewise
purchase the 1-800 Contacts marks and confusingly similar variations or misspellings thereof as
keywords (and fail to implement corresponding negative keywords) in order to display
advertisements for Defendant’s competitive goods and services in response to searches for
Plaintiff and Plaintiff’s Goods and Services.

24, Plaintiff has been and will continue to be damaged by such wrongful acts.

25.  Because Defendant’s actions, on information and belief, were intentional, willful
and/or deliberate, Plaintiff is entitled to an award of tijéb!e damages under § 35(a) of the Lanham
Act (15 U.S.C. § 1117(a)).

26.  This is an exceptional case, and thus Plaintiff is entitled to an award of attorneys’
fees under § 35(a) of the Lanham Act (15 U.S.C. § 1117(a)).

27. By reason of the foregoing, Plaintiff is entitled to preliminary and permanent

injunctive relief and monetary damages against Defendant.

6
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COUNT I
(TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT UNDER SECTION 32 OF THE LANHAM ACT-35 U.S.C. § 1114)

28.  Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference all of the foregoing paragraphs.

29, Defendant’s acts as alleged herein with respect to its infringement of Plaintiff’s
marks are likely to cause public confusion, mistake, or deception and, therefore, constitute
trademark infringement in violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1114.

30.  To the extent Defendant utilizes affiliates to conduct keyword advertising on its
behalf, Defendant is secondarily liable for the infringing acts of its affiliates that likewise
purchase the 1-800 Contacts marks and confusingly similar variations or misspellings thereof as
keywords (and fail to implement corresponding negative keywords) in order to display
advertisements for Defendant’s competitive goods and services in response to searches for
Plaintiff and Plaintiff’s Goods and Services.

31.  Plaintiff has been and will continue to be damaged by such wrongful acts.

32. Because Defendant’s actions, on information and belief, were intentional, willful
and/or deliberate, Plaintiff is entitled to an award of treble damages under § 35(a) of the Lanham
Act (15 U.S.C. § 1117(a)).

33.  This is an exceptional case, and thus Plaintiff is entitled to an award of attorneys’
fees under § 35(a) of the Lanham Act (15 U.S.C. § 1117(a)).

34. By reason of the foregoing, Plaintiff is entitled to preliminary and permanent

injunctive relief and monetary damages against Defendant.

COUNT Il
(CONTRIBUTORY TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT UNDER SECTIONS 43(A) AND 32 OF THE
LANHAM ACT)
35.  Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference all of the foregoing paragraphs.
7

4734363 1.DOC

CONFIDENTIAL — FTC Docket No. 9372 1-800F_00080749



PUBLIC

Case 2:10-cv-00131-CW Document 2  Filed 02/18/2010 Page 8 of 11

36.  On information and belief, the search engines through which Defendant conducts
its advertising use the 1-800 Contacts marks in order to display Defendant’s competitive
advertisements and links to Defendant’s competitive websites. Such use is a use in commerce in
connection with the advertisement of Defendant’s competitive goods and services which is likely
to cause public confusion, mistake, or deception as to the affiliation, connection, or association
of Plaintiff with Defendant. Such use is also likely to cause public confusion, mistake, or
deception as to the origin, sponsorship, or appr'pval of Defendant’s goods and services by
Plaintiff. Accordingly, the search engines’ acts constitute trademark infringement in violation of
15U.8.C. §§ 1114 and 1125(a).

FL Defendant’s actions as alleged above, and particularly Defendant’s failure to
implement appropriate negative keywords in connection with its internet advertising campaigns
through the search engines to ensure that Defendant’s advertisements and/or links to Defendant’s
competitive websites are not displayed in response to or as a result of a search for Plaintiff’s
trademarks and/or Goods and Services, demonstrate a willful blindness to the infringement of the
1-800 Contacts marks and the consumer confusion being caused by its participation in its internet
advertising campaigns. Such actions constitute contributory infringement, whether or not
Defendant affirmatively purchases any of Plaintift’s trademarks as keywords.

38.  Plaintiff has been and will continue to be damaged by such wrongful acts.

39. Plaintiff is, therefore, entitled to all damages and relief set forth under Counts |
and 11 above due to Defendant’s contributory trademark infringement.

COUNT IV
(CoMMON LAW UNFAIR COMPETITION, MISAPPROPRIATION, AND TRADEMARK
INFRINGEMENT — UTAH UNFAIR COMPETITION ACT, UTAH CODE ANN. §13-5a-101 et. seq.)

40.  Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference all of the foregoing paragraphs.
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41, The 1-800 Contacts marks are distinctive of Plaintiff’s Goods and Services and of
Plaintiff as the source for those Goods and Services.

42. Defendant’s actions, as alleged above, were intentional business acts that infringe
and diminish the value of Plaintiff’s trademark rights under federal common law and Utah
common law and, therefore, constitute acts of unfair competition under Utah Code Ann. §13-5a-
102(4)(a).

43. By reason of the foregoing, Plaintiff is entitled to injunctive relief and monetary
damages against Defendant.

44, The infringing activities of Defendant, on information and belief, are willful and
intentional, thereby justifying an award of exemplary and/or punitive damages.

COUNT V
(UNJUST ENRICHMENT)

45.  Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by this reference all of the foregoing
paragraphs.

46. Defendant has benefited from the improper, unfair, and unauthorized use of the
1-800 Contacts marks in its Internet advertising and its unauthorized trading off of Plaintiff’s
goodwill attendant thereto, as alleged above.

47, Defendant has knowledge and fully appreciates the benefits it has received from
Plaintiff’s trademark rights, consumer recognition, and goodwill as a result of such actions.

48.  Defendant would be unjustly enriched if it were permitted to retain the proceeds
obtained from such actions.

49, Equity and good conscience dictate that Defendant be required to account for and

turn over to Plaintiff an amount equal to the value of the benefits involuntarily conferred upon it.
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JURY DEMAND

Plaintiff demands that all claims and causes of action raised in this complaint against
Defendant be tried to a jury to the fullest extent possible under the United States and Utah
Constitutions,

PRAYER FOR RELIETF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands judgment against Defendant as follows:

A. Preliminarily and permanently enjoining Defendant, its affiliates, and all other
persons participating or acting in concert with it, from infringing any of Plaintiff’s rights in the
1-800 Contacts marks.

B. Preliminarily and permanently enjoining Defendant, its affiliates, and all other
persons participating or acting in concert with it, from purchasing or using the 1-800 Contacts-
marks or any marks confusingly similar to the 1-800 Contacts marks as keywords in Internet
search engine advertising programs and from otherwise using such marks in any manner that is
likely to cause confusion or mistake as to whether Defendant and its goods and services are
authorized by, affiliated with, sponsored by, or endorsed by Plaintiff,

C. Ordering Defendant, its affiliates, and all other persons participating or acting in
concert with it to implement the 1-800 Contacts marks and all confusingly similar variations and
misspelling thereof as negative keywords in all of their search engine advertising campaigns;

D. Ordering Defendant to provide an accounting of all revenues and profits gained
by Defendant while engaging in the acts complained of in this complaint;

E., Ordering Defendant to promulgate corrective advertising pursuant to Utah Code

Ann. § 13-11a-4(3);
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E. Awarding Plaintiff its actual damages, and awarding Plaintiff any additional
damages that the Court deems just and equitable under the circumstances of the case; but in no
case less than the statutory damages mandated under Utah Code Ann. § 13-11a-4(2)(b);

G. Awarding Plaintiff, at its election, either treble or statutory damages in
accordance with § 35 of the Lanham Act (15 U.S.C. § 1117) on all claims asserted under § 43 of

the Lanham Act (15 U.S.C. § 1125);

H. Awarding Plaintiff damages to which it is entitled based upon Defendant’s unjust
enrichment;
1. Awarding Plaintiff prejudgment interest at the rate established under 26 U.S.C.

§ 6621(a)(2) from the date of service of the Complaint through the date of judgment;
J. Awarding Plaintiff its allowable costs and attorneys fees; and
K. Awarding Plaintiff such other and/or further relief as is just and equitable.
DATED this 18" day of February, 2010.
Respectfully submitted,
fs/ Mark A. Miller
Mark A. Miller (9563)

Bryan G. Pratt (9924)
Brett L. Foster (6089)

Plaintiff’s Address:
66 East Wadsworth Park Drive
Draper, Utah 84020
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e Pl e
Paxton R. Guymon (8188) S
MILLER MAGLEBY & GUYMON, P.C. e
170 South Main, Suite 350 .
Salt Lake City, Utah 84101 3 a2 BT T

Telephone: (801) 363-5600
Facsimile: (801) 363-5601

Terence P. Ross

Amy E. Barrier

GiBsON, DUNN & CRUTCHER, LLP
1050 Connecticut Ave., N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20036
Telephone: (202) 055-8500

Attorneys for Plaintiff

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

DISTRICT OF UTAH, CENTRAL DIVISION

1-800 CONTACTS, INC,, a Delaware
corporation, COMPLAINT

Plaintiff,
VS.

Judge Dale A. Kimball
COASTA